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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Shareholders of

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company
(A Public Shareholding Company)

Amman - Jordan

Report on the Consoclidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Jordan
Projects for Tourism Development Company- Jordan (A Public Shareholding Company)
and its subsidiaries referred to as “the Group”, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as of December 31, 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’
equity, and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Jordan Tourism Projects
Development Company as of December 31, 2019, and its consclidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code), together with other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Group's separate financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Materjal Uncertainty about the Group's Abili ntinue as i ern

We draw attention to Notes (29 and 35) to the consolidated financial statements, which
state that the Group incurred a loss of about JD 3.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2019. The Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by JD 11.9 million.
The issues in Notes (29 and 35) raise a material uncertainty about the Group's ability to
continue in the future in accordance with the going concern principle.

Our opinion is not modified regarding this matter.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs
We draw attention to the following:

1. As stated in Note (20) to the consolidated financial statements, which refers to the tax
status of the Group, the Income and Sales Tax Department - Agaba Economic Zone
Authority (ASEZA) issued an order for the attachment of the bank accounts of Moon
Beach for Tourism Investments Company on October 29, 2017 because the Company
did not pay the tax amounts it owed to the Income and Sales Tax Department.

2. As stated in Note (31) to the consolidated financial statements, all the plots of land
owned by the Group are subject to restrictions under the agreement with Aqaba
Special Economic Zone Authority.

Our opinion is not qualified regarding those matters.

Oth atters
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are a translation of the original
consolidation financial statements which are in the Arabic language, to which reference
should be made.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.



Deloitte.

A description is provided on how our audit addressed the matter below in that context.

Propert ufi e

Key Audit Matters

Scope of Audit to Address the Risks

The Group has property and equipment with a
carrying amount of JD 80 million as at
December 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018: JD 81
million), as disclosed in Note (5) to the
consolidated financial statements.

An impairment is recognized on the
consolidated statement of financial position
when the recoverable amount is less than the
net carrying amount in accordance with IAS
(36), as described in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements. The determination of the
recoverable amount is based on fair value less
costs of disposal.

We have considered the impairment of property
and equipment to be a key audit matter, given
the value at which two hotel properties owned
and operated by the Group have been appraised
and recorded upon their acquisition in previous
years, the complexity involved in the
determination of the recoverable amount and
the significance of the amount in the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Other Information

Our audit procedures included an assessment
of the design and implementation of controls

over

the impairment analysis and

calculations. In addition, we also performed
the following substantive audit procedures:

Engaged our internal real estate
valuation specialist to assess the
reported value of certain property and
equipment forming the majority of the

Group’s property and equipment
balance;
Reviewed the valuation reports

provided by a third party valuation
expert to assess the valuation
approach and valuation assumptions;
Assessed the land rates and
depreciated replacement costs
assumed by the third party expert
based on the undertaken high-level
market research and discussions held
with the third party expert;

Assessed the skills, competency,
objectivity and qualifications of the
third party valuation expert; and
Assessed the disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements
relating to this matter against the
requirements of IFRSs.

Management is responsible for other information. Other information consists of information
provided in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and the related
auditor's report. We expect that the annual report will be provided to us at a later date to our
report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not include other information,
and we do not express any type of assurance or conclusion thereon.

Regarding the audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
above-mentioned information as it becomes available to us, and in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the censolidated financial statements or
information obtained through our audit, or if other information include material misstatements.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is
higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation .

o Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the consolidated financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and
implementation of the Group's audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements including those regarding independence, and have communicated
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report, unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Group maintains proper books of accounts, which are in agreement with the consolidated
financial statements. We recommend that the General Assembly of Shareholders approve these
consolidated financial statements after taking inte consideration what is stated in the “Material
Uncertainty about the Group’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern”paragra h\and “Emphasis
of Matter” paragraphs mentioned above. r 8

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan Deloitte (M.E.) - Jordan
August 5, 2020



JORDAN PROIECTS FOR TOURISM DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PU

EHOLDING CO
AMMAN - JORDAN

M

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets:
Investment property - net
Property and equipment - net
Other debit balances - long-term
Leased property - finance lease
Projects under construction - net
Right-of-use assets

Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets:

Projects and lands available for sale and ready projects pending delivery

Other debit balances

Inventory

Accounts receivable - net

Cash on hand and at banks

Due from related parties
Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Subscribed and paid-up capital
Share premium
Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve
Foreign currencies translation differences
Accumulated (losses)
NET SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Non-Current Liabilities:
Long-term loans
Accounts payable - long-term
Shareholder's loan - long-term
Finance lease - long-term
Lease liability

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Other credit balances

Other provisions

Short-term loans

Deferred revenues

Contracts liability - short term

Lease Liability

Income tax provision

Due to related parties

Shareholder's loan - short term
Total Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Chief Executive Officer

December 31

Note 2019 2018
D o
4 3,122,831 3,210,179
5 79,922,401 80,782,514
9 1,062,990 1,070,000
6 5,005,293 5,114,497
8 56,902 56,902
30 3,581,880 =
92,752,297 90,234,092
7 20,997,780 21,324,612
9 762,050 811,848
10 677,604 616,147
11 1,302,539 1,953,008
12 455,864 627,101
28 172,407 502,513
24,368,244 25,835,319
117,120,541 116,069,411
13 30,500,000 30,500,000
13 29,719,600 29,719,600
13 2,394,160 2,394,160
13 1,527,192 1,527,192
154,610 156,519
29 (23,431,213) (19,657,010}
40,864,349 44,640,461
14 25,825,851 17,928,725
15 2,522,017 469,787
19 6,078,785 7,216,819
6 1,831,080 2,507,334
30 3,712,872 -
39,570,605 28,122 665
15 11,793,485 9,536,357
16 3,303,492 5,663,113
17 5,728,656 7,079,015
14 11,659,775 19,292,229
18 1721 285,000
6 676,253 630,809
30 795,457 -
20 325,475 274,156
28 431,273 545,606
19 1,500,000 -
36,285,587 43,306,285
76,256,192 71,428,550
117,120,541 116,069,411

Chairman

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE

ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT.

5§ %



JORDAN PROJECTS FOR TOURISM DEVELQ

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY?}

AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOQOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross Profit

Personnel costs
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation expenses
Borrowing costs
Provision for the termination of Oryx Hotel Management contract
Release of expected credit losses
Other provisions expense
Other revenues
(Loss) for the Year before Income Tax
Income tax expense

(Loss) for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income Items:

Itemms subseqguently transferable to statement of profit or loss:

Foreign currencies translation differences
Total Comprehensive (Loss) for the Year

(Loss) per Share for the Year Attributable to Shareholders

Chief Executive Officer

For the Year Ended

December 31,

Note 2019 2018
D o}
21 17,134,998 18,042,372
22 (7,176,606) (9,986,434)
9,958,392 8,055,938
23 (5,384,610) (5,251,604)
24 (898,724) (963,019)
4,5,6 (2,502,437) (1,600,489)
25 (4,582,593) (4,177,056}
17 (185,000) (247,392)
11 118,238 21,678
26 (419,000) (1,855,361)
27 172,850 226,146
(3,722,884) (5,791,159)
20 (51,319) (475,850)
(3,774,203) (6,267,009)
(1,909) 1,591
(3,776,112) (6,265,418)
32 (0.12) (0.21)
Chairman

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE

ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT.



For the Year Ended D

Balance - beginning of the year

{Loss) for the year

Foreign currencies translation differences
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year

Balance - End of the Year

Balance - beginning of the year

Effect of adopting IFRS (9) (Note 11)
Adjusted Beginning Balance

(Loss) for the year

Foreign currencies translation differences
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year

Balance - End of the Year

Paid-up Share Reserves Accumulated Net Shareholdrs'
Fareign Currencies
Capital Premium Statutory Voluntary Translation Differences (Losses) Equity
D JD o] D D i D
30,500,000 29,719,600 2,394,160 1,527,192 156,519 (19,657,010) 44,640,461
i - - = - (3,774,203) (3,774,203)
= s . - (1,909) - (1,909)
R - - 5 (1,909) (3,774,203) (3,776,112)
30,500,000 29,719,600 2,394,160 1,527,192 154,610 (23,431,213) 40,864,342
30,500,000 29,719,600 2,394,160 1,527,192 154,928 (12,540,955) 51,754,925
" 4 - - - (849,046) (849,046)
30,500,000 29,719,600 2,394,160 1,527,192 154,928 (13,3590,001) 50,905,879
" = & - - (6,267,009) (6,267,009)
- i - - 1,591 # 1,591
& - - - 1,591 (6,267,009) (6,265,418)
30,500,000 29,719,600 2,394,160 1,527,192 156,519 (19,657,010) 44,640,461

*  The accumulated losses include unrealized valuation gain of JD 15,715,563 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

THE ACCOMPAMYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT.



JORDAN PROJECTS FOR TOURISM DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
{A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended

December 31,
Note 2019 2018
Cash Flow From Operating Activities: D o
(Loss) for the year before income tax (3,722,864) (5,791,159)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses 2,502,437 1,600,489
Provision for the termination of Oryx Hotel Management agreement 185,000 247,392
(Release from) expected credit |osses i1 (118,238) (21,678)
Other provisions expense 419,000 1,855,361
Borrowing costs 4,582,593 4,177,056
MNet Cash Flows from Operating Activities before Changes in Working Capital 3,847,908 2,067,461
(Increase) Decrease n assets:
Projects and |lands available for sale and ready projects pending delivery 326,832 1,170,148
Inventory (61,457) (42,542)
Other debit balances 124,261 608,191
Accounts receivable 768,797 (64,998)
Due from related party 330,106 (23,464)
Increase (Decrease) in liabilities:
Due to banks ¥ (4,853)
Accounts payable, other credit balances and other provisions 1,371,554 1,452,101
Finance lease contracts liability (630,810) (580,356)
Due to related parties (114,333) (725,886)
Deferred revenues (213,279) (627,013)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities before Paid Provisions 5,749,979 3,228,789
Paid from provisions:
Paid from provision for the termination of Oryx Hotel Management agreement (441,495) (47,738)
Paid from other provisions (936,990) -
Met Cash Flows from Operating Activities 4,371,494 3,181,051
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
(Purchases) of property and equipment 5 (617,001) (659,408)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 30,225 -
Net Cash Flows (used in) Investing Activities {586,776} (659,408)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Loans 264,672 1,429,635
Sharehalder's loan 361,966 376,232
Borrowing costs (4,582,593) (4,177,056)
Net Cash Flows {used in) Financing Activities (3,955,955) (2,371,189)
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash (171,237) 150,454
Cash on hand and at banks - beginning of the year 627,101 476,647
Cash on Hand and at Banks - End of the Year 12 455,864 627,101
Non-Cash Transactions:
Investment property transferred to projects and lands available for sale
and ready projects pending delivery 487 = 139,633

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE
ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT ALUDITOR'S REPORT.



JORDAN PROJECTS FOR TOURISM DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

a. Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company (“the Company”) was established
during the year 2000, in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law Number (22)
for the year 1997. It was registered at the Ministry of Industry and Trade as a Public
Shareholding Company under number (339) on June 15, 2000 with a paid-up capital
of JD 7 million divided into 7 million shares at a par value of JD 1 per share. The
Company’s subscribed and paid-up capital has been increased through several
stages to reach JD 30.5 million. On February 16, 2001, the Company was registered
and licensed at Aqaba Special Economic Zone Authority under No. (1101021601) to
provide service.

The Group performs all its commercial activities in Agaba Special Economic Zone,
except for some administrative activities which are performed in Amman. Its head
office address is Zahran Street (179), P.O Box (941299) Amman - Jordan.

b. The main objectives of the Group are the following:

- Construct, build, purchase, sell, lease, rent, manage and supply hotels of all
types, including outlets and showrooms.

- Construct, sell, participate in and manage entities, projects, touristic hotels,
villages, villas, beach cabins and all other related activities.

- Construct, establish, participate in and manage travel and tourism agencies and
offices and provide services relating to the tourism sector, in addition to selling
traditional handicrafts of all kinds.

c. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the
Group's Board of Directors on June 25, 2020 and they are subject to the approval of
the General Assembly of Shareholders,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements:

- The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the standards issued by the International Standards Board (IASB)
and the interpretations issued by IASB Committee.

- The consclidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, except for financial assets and financial liabilities, which are presented at fair
value at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

- The consolidated financial statements are stated in Jordanian Dinar, which represents
the functional currency of the Group.

- The accounting policies adopted for the current year are consistent with those applied

in the year ended December 31, 2018, except for what is mentioned in Notes (3-a)
and (3-b).
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b. Basis of Consolidation of the Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group and its controlled companies (the subsidiary companies) (“The Group”).
Control is achieved when the Group has the ability to control the financial and
operational policies of the subsidiary entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Transactions, balances, revenues and expenses between the Company and its
subsidiaries are eliminated upon preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and the following directly and

companies:

indirectly owned subsidiary

Country of Origin and

Company's Name Ownership Activity Nature Work Location
%
Constructing and Jordan - Agaba
Agaba Gulf Constructions * 100 Contracting Special Economic Zone
Tala Beach for Maintenance Garbage collection Jordan - Aqaba
and Services 100 and recycling Special Economic Zone
Operating and managing
Jordan Hotels Holding AG 100 Hotels Switzerland
Amwaj Al Agaba for Managing Managing projects and
Projects and Services 100 logistics services Jordan - Amman
Purchasing lands and
Tala Beach for Investments * 100 constructing projects Jordan = Amman
Jordan Golden Beach — BVI * 100 Touristic investments Virgin British Islands
Jordan Hotel I BVI * 100 Touristic investments Virgin British Islands
Jordan Hotel IT BVI * 100 Touristic investments Virgin British Islands
Jordan Hotel IV BVI * 100 Touristic investments Virgin British Islands
Moon Beach for Tourism Operating and managing Jordan — Agaba
Investments 100 Hotels Special Economic Zone
Operating and managing Jordan - Agaba
Golden Coast for Hotels 100 Hotels Special Economic Zone
Jordan Union for Tourism Operating and managing Jordan - Agaba
Projects 60 Hotels Special Economic Zone
Operating and managing Jordan - Agaba
Sama Al.AgRDa Campany 100 Hotels Special Economic Zone

None of these companies has conducted any trading activities during the year ended
December 31, 2019. On April 21, 2011, a decision was taken to liquidate Agaba Gulf
Constructions, which is still under liquidation. On March 27, 2016, the voluntary
liquidation procedures were suspended, and a compulsory liquidation decision was
issued. In addition, Agaba Gulf Constructions was still under liquidation as of the
consolidated financial statements date.

Non-controlling interest was not shown in the Jordan Union for Tourism Projects
Company as the accumulated losses of the company exceeded the non-controlling
interest.
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The most significant financial information regarding the subsidiary companies

before elimination for the year 2019 is as follows:

Company’s Name
Agaba Gulf Constructions (Under liquidation)
Tala Beach for Maintenance and
Services
Jordan Hotels Holding AG
Amwaj Al-Agaba for Managing Projects and
Services
Tala Beach for Investments
Jordan Golden Beach - BVI
Jordan Hotel I BVI
Jordan Hotel II BVI
Jordan Hotel IV BVI
Moon Beach for Tourism Investments
Golden Coast for Hotels
Jordan Union for Tourism Projects
Sama Al Agaba Company

December 31, 2019

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2018

Total Total Total Total
Assets Liabilities Revenue Expenses
D D D D
17,817 (718,934) - -
1,955,461  (1,847,681) 2,718,573 (1,235,231)
287,558 (74,727) 107,959 (80,839)
1,817,880 (680,100) 4,140,649 (505,655)
500 (1,500) - -
22,500,000 (22,569,686) - (63,450)
7,500,000 (7,532,026) % (27,428)
- (4,090) = (1,502)
5,679,543 (5,683,088) - E
26,301,252 (29,320,752) 7,032,634 (7,409,338)
15,037,545 (10,790,233) 3,808,037 (3,135,676)
500 (650,650) - (222,900)
134,288 (257,815) - -

- The subsidiaries’ results of operations are consolidated in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and comprehensive income effective from the date of their
acquisition - i.e. the date on which actual control over the subsidiary is assumed by
the Company. Moreover, the operating results of the disposed-of subsidiaries are
consolidated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss up to the effective date of
their disposal — i.e. the date on which the Company loses control over the subsidiary.

Control is achieved when the Group:
e Has the ability to control the investee;

s Is exposed to variable returns, or has the right to variable returns resulting from
its engagement with the investee; and

e Has the ability to use its authority to affect the return of the investee.

The Group reassess whether it controls the investee or not, if the fact and
circumstances indicate that are changes in one or more of the control check points

referred to above.

In case the Group’s voting right falls below the majority of any of the investee, the
Group will have the authority to control when the voting rights are sufficient to give
the Group the Power to direct the activities of the subsidiaries unilaterally. The Group
takes into account all the facts and circumstances when assessing whether the Group
has sufficient voting rights to give it the power to control or not. Among these facts

and circumstances:

s« The proportion of Group’s voting rights relative to the proportion and distribution

of other’s voting right.

s The potential voting rights that the Group acquires and any permissible voting
rights acquired by others or third parties;

s Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has or doesn't
have a current responsibility to direct the relevant activities at the time that the
required decisions are taken, including how to vote at previous general assembly

meetings.
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When the Group loses control of any of the subsidiaries, the Group does the
following:

Derecognition of the subsidiary’s assets (including goodwill) and its liabilities;
Derecognition of the carrying value of any interest not controlled by the Group;
Derecognition of accumulated exchange differences in shareholders’ equity;
Derecognition of the fair value for received consideration;

Derecongition of the fair value of held in investments;

Derecognition of any surplus or deficit in the statement of profit or loss;
Reclassification of the Group’s shareholders’ equity previously recognized in
other comprehensive income to the consolidated statement of profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate;

e o & @ @ @ o

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same financial
period of the Group using the same accounting policies followed by the Group. If the
subsidiaries’ accounting policies differ from those used by the Group, the necessary
adjustments must be made to the subsidiaries’ financial statements to match the
Group's accounting policies.

The following are the most significant accounting policies:

Cash on Hand and at Banks

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand, bank balances, and short-term deposits with maturities of three
months or less after deducting the balances due to banks.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument, and they are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets (except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

All recognized financial assets are measured subsequently at either amortized cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of Financial Assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at
amortized cost:

e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value.
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Amortized Cost and Effective Interest Method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding
expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on
initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a
credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future
cash flows, expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of the debt instrument on
initial recognition.

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses

The carrying amount of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is
determined and translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables.
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

For all aother financial instruments, the Group recognizes lifetime expected credit loss
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Lifetime expected credit loss represents the expected credit losses that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Provision for Expected Credit Losses

The Group has adopted the simplified approach to recognize expected credit losses over
the life of its receivables as permitted by IFRS 9. Accordingly, non-impaired trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component have been classified
as part of stage 2 with the recognition of expected credit losses over their lifetime.

A provision for the expected credit loss should be recognized over the life of the
financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument increases substantially
since the initial recognition and the expected credit loss is an expected weighted
estimate of the present value of the credit loss. This value is measured as the present
value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Group under the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive arising from the expectation of several
future economic scenarios, discounted at the effective interest rate of the asset.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment on an individual
basis for each asset of individual value, and collectively for other assets that are not
individually significant.

Provisions for loss of credit losses are presented as a reduction of the total carrying
amount of financial assets at amortized cost.
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Write Off

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty, and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are significantly
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income.

De-Recognition of Financial Assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for the amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognize the financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income.

Classification as Debt or Equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Group’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s
own equity instruments.

Financial Liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective
interest method or at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities that are not (i) a contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination, (ii) held-for-trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured
subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables classified as financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value, net of transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expenses are recognized based on the effective
interest rate.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortized cost of a financial liability.
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De-recoagnition of Financial Liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is defined as the a price at which an asset is to be sold or paid to convert any
of the liabilities in a structured transaction between the market participants on the
measurement date, irrespective of whether the price can be realized directly or whether
it is estimated using another valuation technique. When estimating the fair value of an
asset or liability, the Group takes into consideration, when determining the price of any
asset or liability, whether market participants are required to take these factors into
account at the measurement date. The fair value for measurement and / or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on the same basis,
except for measurement procedures that are similar to fair value procedures and are
not fair value such as fair value as used in IAS (36).

In addition, fair value measurements are classified for the purposes of financial
reporting to level (1) or (2) or (3) based on the extent to which the inputs are clear to
fair value measurements and the importance of inputs to the full fair value
measurements, which are identified as follows:

Input Level (1) Inputs derived from quoted (unadjusted) prices of identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the enterprise can obtain on the
measurement date;

Input level (2) Inputs derived from data other than quoted prices used at level 1 and
observable for assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly; and;

Input level (3) Inputs to assets or liabilities that are not based on quoted
market prices

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is evidence that the asset has
been impaired. If any evidence exists, or when an impairment test is required, the
Group assesses the recoverable amount of the asset. Moreover, the recoverable amount
of the asset is the fair value of the asset or cash-generating unit less cost of disposal
and value in use, whichever is higher. It is determined for the individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate substantially independent internal cash flows from those
arising from other assets or the Group’s assets. Where the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit exceeds the recoverable amount, the asset is considered to be
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing the fair value
used, future cash flows are discounted to their present fair value, using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of funds and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of sales, recent
transactions in the market are taken into consideration, if available. If such transactions
cannot be identified, the appropriate valuation model is used.

Inventory

Inventory of food, beverages, construction material, fuel and consumable goods is
stated at the end of the year at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of
inventory is determined by using the weighted average method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at the historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and any other impairment losses. Cost includes all costs directly related to the
acquisition, construction, or production.
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Depreciation is charged using the straight-line method to write-off the cost of assets
over their estimated useful lives in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income, except for property under construction, which is detailed as
follows:

Annual Depreciation

Rate
%
Buildings, yachts port, and swimming pools 2
Furniture and fixtures 10 - 15
Cars and vehicles 15
Equipment and tools 15
Decoration trees and plants 10
Computers 20
Other 10 - 15

Property under construction is presented at cost less any impairment losses.
Depreciation on these assets starts, using the same method applied to similar property
and equipment, when they are ready for their intended use.

When the recoverable amount of any property and equipment is less than its net
carrying amount, the amount is reduced to its recoverable amount, and the amount of
the impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income.

The useful life of the property and equipment is reviewed at the end of each year. If the
life expectancy is different from the pre-estimate, the change in estimate is recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income as a change
in estimates.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Investment Property

Investment property is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Thase investments are owned by the Group for the purpose of
earning lease revenue and/or increase in their value. The accounting treatment of
investment property is the same as that for property and equipment, in addition to
disclosing of their fair value in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Leased Property — Finance Lease
Leased contracts whose contractual terms require the lessee to materially bear all of
the risk and rewards of these assets are classified as finance lease.

At initial recognition, assets leased under finance lease contracts are measured at an
amount equal to the fair value of those assets or the present value of the minimum
lease payments, whichever is lower. These buildings are stated at the present value of
the minimum lease payments after deducting the accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated to amortize the cost of the leased assets - finance lease less
the residual value on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life. In addition,
depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, and at an annual depreciation rate of 2%,
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Projects
Projects are presented at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes an

appropriate share from lands development costs, which are allocated over each of the
lands, apartments available for sale, and apartments under construction. Moreover,
costs are determined using the weighted average method. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price of projects less all costs necessary to complete
the project and other costs required to complete the sale.

Revenue Recognition
The Group’s general revenue are mainly from sale of goods and services (Hotel services
and sale of real estate, services and others).

Revenue is measured at fair value based on the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled (net of returns and discounts) from contracts with customers and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognizes revenue
when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer. Following delivery, the
customer has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods,
has the primary responsibility when selling the goods, and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognized by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customer, as this represents the point in time at
which the right to the consideration becomes unconditional; or else in the case of
providing a service, only the passage of time is required before payment is due.

For certain customers, the goods are sold with discounts retroactively on the basis of 12
months of total sales. Revenue of these sales is recognized based on the price specified
in the contract less estimated discounts. In this regard, the Group uses its accumulated
historical experience to estimate discounts, and revenue is recognized to the extent that
it is probable that there will be no material reversal. Liabilities for discounts on
payments to customers are recovered in respect of sales made during the year.

The Group accounts for the consideration payable to a the customer (promotional
expenses) which occur in conjunction with purchase of goods / services from the Group
as a reduction of the sale price, and it is recorded as an expense unless the payment to
the customer in exchange for a distinct good or service is separate from the sale then it
is recorded as sales and distribution expenses.

Revenue from the sale of lands and apartments
Revenue from the sale of lands and apartments is recognized at the fair value of the
consideration received when all the following conditions are met:

a. The Group has transferred all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
lands and apartments to the buyer; and

b.  The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership of the lands nor effective control over those
lands and sold apartments; and

c. The amount of revenue can be reliably measured; and

d. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group; and

e. The costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured.

Interest Income and Expenses
Interest income and expense are recognized on a time basis with reference to the
outstanding and the effective interest rate according to the accrual basis.
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Hotels Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considerations received or receivable and
recognized when the services are rendered as follows:

= Rooms revenue: recognized according to the accrual basis.

- Food & beverage: revenue recognized when the service is rendered.

- Other departments: revenue recegnized when the service is rendered.
= Rent revenue: recognized according to the accrual basis.

Sales Department Expenses

Direct expenses of the sales department and commissions paid for the sold apartments
(which the Group’s management believes to be recoverable from the revenue realized
from selling transactions) are deferred, and these expenses are amortized once revenue
is recognized from the sales of units when the sale is recognized.

When a sales contract is canceled, the sales department contract-related expenses are
charged to the fiscal year to which the contract relates,

The rest of the selling expenses are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and comprehensive income in the year incurred.

Sales Commission
Sales commission is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

comprehensive income when earned using the accrual basis.

Expenses
Selling and distribution expenses consist mainly of costs incurred in the distribution and

sale of the Group's products / services. Other expenses are classified as general and
administrative expenses.

General and administrative expenses include direct and indirect expenses that are not
directly related to the cost of sales / contracts in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards. If necessary, expenses are distributed between general and
administrative expenses and cost of sales / contract on a consistent basis.

Lease contracts

Accounting policies used until December 31, 2018

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease provide for
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as a Lessee

Assets acquired through leases are recognized on initial recognition at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or at the present value of the minimum lease payments,
whichever is lower. Financial leasing liabilities are recorded at the same value. These
obligations are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as finance
lease liabilities.

The lease payments are distributed between the financing expenses and decreasing of
the financial lease liabilities in order to achieve a fixed rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the lease liabilities. Direct financing expenses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease, except in situations where it has another regular basis that is more
representative of the time pattern in which the economic benefits are utilized from the
leased asset. Recognition of reassuring lease arising from operating lease as an in the
period in which they incurred. In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating lease, these incentives are recognized as an obligation. The overall
interest of incentives are recognized as reduction in lease expense on straight line
basis, unless there is a systematic basis that is more representative of the time pattern
in which will be used from economic benefits from leased assets.
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Accounting policy used from January 1, 2019

The Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether the contract contains lease when starting the contract. The
Group recognizes the right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease obligations in
relation to all lease arrangements in which the lessee is in, except for short-term lease
contracts (defined as leases of 12 months or less) and low-value asset leases, and for
these contracts, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease, unless another regular basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which the economic benefits from the leased
assets are utilized.

The lease obligation is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that were not paid on the start date of the lease, deducted by using the price implicit in
the lease. If this rate cannot be easily determined, the Group uses its additional
expected rate.

The lease payments included in the rental obligation measurement include:

e Fixed rental payments (essentially including fixed payments), minus accrued
receivable rental incentives;

e Variable rental payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using
the indicator or the rate at the date the contract begins.

e The amount expected to be paid by the lessee under the residual value guarantees.

e The price of the exercise of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain of
the exercise of the options; and

e Paying the contract termination fines, if the lease reflects the exercise of the lease
termination option.

Lease obligations are subsequently measured by increasing the book value to
reflect the interest in the rental obligations (using the effective interest method)
and by reducing the book value to reflect the rental payments paid.

The lease obligations (and a similar adjustment to the related right-to-use assets)
are re-measured whenever:

e The lease term has changed or there is an event or important change in the
conditions that lead to a change in the exercise of the purchase option assessment,
in which case the lease obligations are re-measured by deducting the adjusted
lease payment using the adjusted discount rate.

s Lease payments change due to changes in an index, rate, or change in expected
payments under the guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease obligation
is re-measured by deducting the modified rental payments using a non-variable
discount rate (unless the rental payments change due to a change in the floating
interest rate, in this case the adjusted discount rate is used.

e The lease contract is adjusted and the lease amendment is not accounted as a
separate lease, in which case the lease obligation is re-measured based on the
duration of the adjusted lease contract by deducting the adjusted rental payments
using the adjusted discount rate at the actual price at the date of the amendment.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the life of the lease or the useful life of the
asset (whichever is shorter). If the lease contract transfers the ownership of the
underlying asset or the cost of the right to use, which reflects that the Group expects to
exercise the purchase option, then the relevant value of the right to use is depreciated
over the useful life of the asset. Depreciation begins on the date the commencement of
the lease.
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He Group applies International Accounting Standard (36) to determine whether the
value of the right to use has decreased its value and calculates any impairment losses
as described in the policy of "property and equipment”.

Variable rents that are not dependent on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of lease obligations and right-of-use assets. Related payments are
recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that leads to
these payments occurs and are included in "Other Expenditures" in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income.

Income Tax
Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes.

Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income for the year.
Moreover, taxable income differs from income declared in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and comprehensive income because the later includes taxable revenue, or
expenses deductible in subsequent years, or accumulated losses accepted for tax
purposes or unsubjects to tax.

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates prescribed according to the prevailing
laws, regulations, and instructions of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary
timing differences between the value of the assets or liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the value of the taxable amount. Deferred tax is calculated on
the basis of the liability method in the statement of financial position according to the
rates expected to be applied when the tax liability is settled or deferred tax assets are
recognized.

Foreign Currencies

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial
position of each Group subsidiaries are expressed in the functional currency of the
Group, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared, and the Group’s financial
statements are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in
which it operates. Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. On
the consolidated balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
restated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not exchanged.

Exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise except for:

e Exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency
risks.

e Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognized initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.
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For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated at the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in OCI and accumulated in a
separate component of equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Group are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income.

Accrued Expenses and Other Credit Balances

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods / services when
the risks and rewards of the goods are transferred to the Group, or when the services
are received, whether or not they are paid to the Group.

Annual Leave Provision
A provision is recorded against accrued but not paid employees’ vacations as of the date
of the consolidated financial statements based on the Group’s internal policies.

Pravisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the

consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognized amounts, and the Group intends to either settle them on a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Segments Information

- Business segments are determined based on internal financial reporting information
on the Group’s elements, which is reviewed regularly by the main operating decision
maker, to specify the resources for the segment and evaluate its performance.
Segments are divided into business segments or geographical segments.

- A business segment represents a group of assets and operations that collaborate
together in providing products or services, subject to risks and rewards that differ
from those related to other business segments.

- A geographical segment relates to providing goods or services in a specified

economic environment, subject to risks and rewards that differ from those related to
operating segments within other economic environments.
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Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the application of the
accounting policies require from the Group’s management to perform assessments and
assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Moreover, these assessments and assumptions affect revenue,
expenses, and provisions. In particular, this requires from the Group's management to
issue significant judgments and assumptions to assess future cash flows amounts and
their timing. The aforementioned assessments are necessarily based on assumptions
and factors with varying degrees of consideration and uncertainty. In addition, actual
results may differ from assessments due to the changes arising from the conditions and
circumstances of these assessments in the future,

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effect of the
change in estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs if
the change affects only the financial period. Moreover, the effect of the change in
estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs and in future
periods in case the change affects the financial period and future financial periods.

Management believes that its estimates used in the consolidated financial statements
are reasonable. The key estimates used by management in applying the Group's
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Useful Life of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Management periodically re-estimates the useful life of tangible assets and intangible
assets for the purpose of calculating the annual depreciation and amortization based on
the general condition of those assets and estimated future useful lives. The impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income for the year,

Income Tax

The fiscal year is charged with its related income tax expense in accordance with the
regulations, laws and accounting standards. The deferred taxes and income tax
provision are calculated and recognized.

Lawsuits Provision

A provision is booked to meet any potential litigation obligations based on the legal
study prepared by the Group's legal counsel that identifies potential risks in the future
and periodically reviews the study.

Slow-moving Inventory Provision

A slow-moving inventory provision is booked based on approved assumptions by the
Group’s management to assess the provision required in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Assets and Liabilities at Cost

Management reviews the assets and liabilities at cost periodically for the purpose of
estimating any impairment in value, which is recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and comprehensive income for the year.

Fair Value Measurement and Valuation Procedures

When estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Group
uses available observable market data. In case of the absence of level (1) inputs, the
Group conducts evaluations using appropriate valuation models to determine the fair
value of financial instruments.
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Calculation of Provision for Expected Credit Losses

The management is required to use important judgments and estimates to estimate the
amounts and timing of future cash flows and to estimate the risk of significant increase
in credit risk for financial assets after initial recognition and future measurements
information for expected credit losses.

The expected credit loss is measured as a provision equivalent to the expected credit
loss over the life of the asset.

Determining the Number and Relative Weight of Forward-Looking Scenarios for Each
Type of Products / Market and the Identification of Future Information Relevant to Each
Scenario

When measuring the expected credit loss, the Group uses reasonable and reliable future
information based on the assumptions of the future movement of the various economic
factors and how these economic factors affect each other.

The Group continually records credit losses over the life of trade receivables. The
expected credit losses of these financial assets are estimated, using an allowance
matrix based on the Group's past credit loss experience, and adjusted to the factors
relating to debtors and general economic conditions and assessment of both the current
and future trends on the date of the report, including the time value of cash, as
appropriate.

Revenue Recognition

The Group's management uses significant estimates and assumptions to determine the
amount and timing of revenue recognition under IFRS (15), "Revenue from contracts
with customers".

Lease payments discount

Lease payments are discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate ("IBR").
Management applied assumptions and estimates to determine the incremental
borrowing rate when lease contract starts.

.



Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards

Amendments not having a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements:

The following new and revised IFRSs have been adopted and are effective for financial periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2019 in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements that did not materially affect the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements for the year and prior years, which may have an impact on the accounting
treatment of future transactions and arrangements:

New and Revised Standards

Amendments to the New and Revised International and Standards

Annual improvements to
IFRSs issued between 2015
and 2017.

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments”

Improvements include amendments to IFRS 3, "Business
Combinations", IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements", IAS 12
“Income Taxes” and IAS 23 “Borrowing Costs” and as
follows:

IAS 12 “Income Taxes”:

The amendments clarify that the Group should recognise the
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the Group
originally recognised the transactions that generated the
distributable profits. This is the case irrespective of whether
different tax rates apply to distributed and undistributed profits.

IAS 23 “Borrowing Costs”:

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an
entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation
rate on general borrowings.

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”:

The amendments clarify that when the entity obtains control
of a business that is a joint operation, the entity applies the
requirements for a business combination achieved in stages,
including remeasuring its previously held interest (PHI) in
the joint operation at fair value. The PHI to be remeasured
includes any unrecognised assets, liabilities and goodwill
relating to the joint operation.

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”:

The amendments clarify that when a party that participates
in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation that
is a business obtains joint control of such a joint operation,
the Group does not remeasure its PHI in the joint operation.

The interpretation clarifies the determination of taxable
profit (taxable loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax benefits, and tax rates when there is uncertainty about
the treatment of income tax under IAS (12) and it
specifically addresses.

Whether tax treatment should be considered in aggregate.

Assumptions related to the examining procedures for tax
authorities.

Determining taxable profit, tax loss, tax basis, unused tax
losses, unused tax exemptions, and tax rates.

The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.
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New and Revised Standards

Amendments to the New and Revised International and Standards

Amendments to IFRS (9):
“Financial instruments”

Amendments to IAS (28):
“Investment in Associates
and Joint Ventures”

These amendments relate to the advantages of prepayment
with negative compensation, as the current requirements of
IFRS (9) have been modified in relation to termination
rights to allow measurement of the amortized cost (or
based on the business model, at fair value through other
comprehensive income) even in case of negative
compensation payments.

These amendments related to long-term shares in associate
entities and joint ventures. It clarifies that the entity applies
IFRS (9) “Financial Instruments” for long-term shares in an
associate entity or joint venture that forms part of the net
investment in the associate entity or joint venture in case

the equity method has not been applied in this regard.

Amendments to IAS (19): The amendments pertain to the amendments in the plans,
“Employee Benefits Plan curtailment or settlement.

Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement”

b. Amendments with material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group:

Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has adopted IFRS (16), "Leases", which replaces the existing guidelines on leases,
including IAS (17) "Leases" , IFRIC (4) "Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
"and the interpretation of the previous Interpretations Committee (15)" Operational leases -
incentives " and SIC 27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease”.

IFRS (16) was issued in January 2016 and is effective for annual periods commencing on or
after January 1, 2019. IFRS (16) stipulates that all leases and the associated contractual rights
and obligations should generally be recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, unless the term is 12 months or less or the lease is for a simplified approach
low-value asset. Thus, the classification required under IAS (17) “Leases” into operating or
finance leases is eliminated for lessees. For each lease, the lessee recognizes a liability for the
lease obligations incurred in the future. Correspondingly, a right to use the leased asset is
capitalized, which is generally equivalent to the present value of the future lease payments plus
directly attributable costs and which is amortized over the useful life.

The Group has opted for the a simplified approach permitted by IFRS (16) upon adoption of the
new standard. During the first time application of IFRS (16) to operating leases, the right to use
the leased assets was generally measured at the amount of lease liability, using the interest rate
at the time of first-time adoption.

The right-of-use assets have been measured in an amount equal to the lease obligations, and
adjusted by any prepaid or lease payment that is recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2018. No adjustments to the retained earnings, as at
January 1, 2019, have resulted under this method. There were no low-value leases that
required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of the initial application.

- 26 -



The effect of applying the International Financial Reporting Standard No. (16) on the
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2019 is as follows:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position:

Amounts without
IFRS (16)  adoption of IFRS

As reported Impact (16)
ID D D
Right-of-use assets 3,581,880 3,581,880 -
Other debit balances 1,825,040 834,930 2,659,970
Net impact on total assets 4,416,810
Lease labilities 4,508,329 4,508,329 -
Net impact on total liabilities 4,508,329
Accumulated (losses) 23,431,213 (91,518) 23,339,694
Net impact on shareholders’ equity (91,519)
Net impact on liabilities and 4,416,810

shareholders’ equity

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss & Comprehensive Income:

Amounts without
IFRS (16)  adoption of IFRS

As reported Impact (16)
D D D
Borrowing costs (4,582,593) 215,921 (4,366,672)
Depreciation (2,502,437) 862,078 (1,640,359)
Finance cost 220,814 (986,480) 1,207,294
Net impact on consolidated statement of
profit or loss 91,519

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows:
Amounts without
IFRS (16)  adoption of IFRS

As reported Impact (16)

D JD D
(Loss) for the year before income tax (3,722,884) 1,077,999 (2,644,885)
Depreciation expenses 2,502,437  (862,078) 1,640,359
Interest on lease liabilities 4,582,593  (215,921) 4,366,672

Net cash flows from operating activities =

Starting from January 1, 2019, leases were recognized as assets for use and related
obligations on the date when the asset is ready for use by the Group, the value of each rental
payment is distributed between the leasing obligations and the financing costs, and the
financing costs are credited to the profit or loss statement during the lease period to achieve a
fixed periodic interest rate on the remaining balance of the obligation for each period, and the-
right-of use assets are amortized over useful life of the asset or the lease term, whichever is
shorter, according to the straight-line method.
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The assets and liabilities arising from the leases are initially measured on the basis of the
present value, and the lease obligations include the net present value of the following rental
payments:

» Fixed payments (including built-in fixed payments) minus rental incentives receivable;
e Variable lease payments based on index or rate;
» Amounts expected to be paid by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

o The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and;

Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising that option.

Rental payments are deducted using the implied lease interest rate or the tenant's additional
borrowing price, if they are not available, which is the rate at which the lessee must pay to
borrow the funds needed to obtain an asset of comparable value in a similar economic
environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
e The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

e Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

¢ Any initial direct costs, and

s Return costs (renovation and restoration).

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less.

In applying IFRS (16) for the first time, the Company has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

e The use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics

« Reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous

e The accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as
at January 1, 2019 as short-term leases

e The exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application, and

e« The use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date, the
Company relied on its assessment made applying IAS (17), and IFRIC 4 “Determining whether
an arrangement contains a lease”.

-8



c. New and revised International Financial Reporting Standards issued and not yet effective:

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended IFRSs issued but not yet
effective as at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and their details as follows:

New and Revised Standards

Amendments to new and revised IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 1
“Presentation of Financial
Statements”

(Effective from January 1, 2020)

Amendment to IFRS 3 “Business
Combinations”

(Effective from January 1,
2020).

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

(Effective from January 1, 2022)

Amendments to IFRS 10
“Consolidated Financial
Statements” and IAS 28
“Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (2011)”

(Effective date deferred
indefinitely Adoption is still
permitted).

Amendments involve the definition of material. The new
definition states that, ‘Information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose consolidation financial statements make on the
basis of those consolidation financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.’

These amendments clarify the definition of business as the
International Accounting Standards Board published the
Conceptual Financial Reporting Framework. This includes
revised definitions of assets and liabilities as well as new
guidance on measurement, derecognition, presentation
and disclosure.

In addition to the amended conceptual framework, the
IASB issued amendments to the guidelines on the
conceptual framework in the IFRS Standards, which
contain amendments to IFRS 2, 3, 6 and 14 and IAS 1, 8,
34, 37 and 38) and IFRIC 12, 19, Interpretations 20 and
22 and Interpretations of the Standing Committee for the
Interpretation of Standards No. 32 in order to update those
statements with regard to references and quotations from
the framework or to refer to a reference to different from
the conceptual framework.

It provides a more uniform measurement and presentation
approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements
are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-
based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17
supersedes IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”.

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a
current fulfilment value.

Relating to the treatment of the sale or contribution of
assets from and investor to its associate or joint venture,

Management expects to apply these new standards, interpretations, and amendments to
the Group's consolidated financial statements when they are applicable. Moreover, the
adoption of these new standards, interpretations, and amendments may have no
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements in the initial application.

-29._



4. Investment Property - Net

This Item consists of the following:

Balance - beginning of the year
Balance - End of the Year

Accumulated Depreclation and Impairment:
Balance - beginning of the year
Depreclation for the year

Balance - End of the Year
Net Book Value as of December 31, 2019

2018
Cost:
Balance - beginning of the year
Transfers to projects and lands available for sale and
projects pending delivery (Note 7)
Balance - End of the Year

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment:
Balance - beginning of the year
Transfers (Note 7)
Depreclation for the year
Balance - End of the Year
Net Book Value as of December 31, 2018

Annual Depreciation Rate %

*The shops include bulldings built an plots of land acquired under an agreement with Aqaba Economic Zone Authority since 2000.

Royal
Shops Diving Club
and Stores* and Hotel** Total
D i[5 D
2,909,721 1,857,229 4,766,950
2,909,721 1,857,229 4,766,950
866,052 690,719 1,556,771
57,240 30,108 87,348
923,292 720,827 1,644,119
1,986,429 1,136,402 3,122,831
3,103,656 1,857,229 4,960,885
(193,935) & (193,935)
2,909,721 1,857,229 4,766,950
863,114 660,611 1,523,725
(54,302) - (54,302)
57,240 30,108 87,348
866,052 690,719 1,556,771
2,043,669 1,166,510 3,210,179
2 2

Revenues generated from shops and stores amounted to JD 234 K in 2019 (JD 274 K in 2018).

That Group has provided first-degree mortgage of ID 9.8 million to Jordan Kuwait Bank and Invest Bank on several stores and shops

with a net book value of 1D 2 million.

**The Royal Diving Club and hotel are established on a plot of land leased annually for 1D 67,000 for 49 years under an agreement

with Agaba Economic Authority effective from the year 2000 (note 31/d).
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Leased Property-Finance Lease

This item represents a finance lease related to leasing back buildings (staff housing) sold in
2015, whereby the Group sold buildings worth JD 8,300,000, and signed a finance lease
agreement for the building with the owner. The agreement states that the Group has the
right to exercise the purchase option after the expiry of the lease period through a
percentage added to the selling price of the building specified in the contract. Moreover, the
lease is for a period of 5 years starting from 2016 for an amount of JD 800,000 per year,
and JD 920,000 per year for 3 additional years ending at the end of 2023.

The below table shows the calculation of the leased property - finance lease at its net book
value:

December 31,

2019 2018
JD D
Lease property- finance lease at cost 5,605,044 5,605,044
(Less): accumulated depreciation (599,751) (490,547)
Book Value as of December 31 5,005,293 5,114,497

The depreciation expense for the year 2019 amounted to JD 109,204 (JD 109,206 for the
year 2018).

The finance lease liability contract details as of December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Future Value Present Value
of Lease of Lease
Payment Interest Payment
D D D
Less than one year 800,000 (123,747) 676,253
From 1-5 years 1,960,000 (128,920) 1,831,080
2,760,000 (252,667) 2,507,333

The finance lease liability contract details as of December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Future Value Present Value
of Lease of Lease
Payment Interest Payment
JD D D
Less than one year 800,000 (169,191) 630,809
From 1-5 vears 2,760,000 (252,666) 2,507,334
3,560,000 (421,857) 3,138,143

In addition to the above liabilities, there are outstanding amounts of JD 2,017,101 as of
December 31, 2019 (JD 1,217,101 as at 31 December 2018), which are included in
accounts payable (Note 15).

Projects and Lands Available for Sale and Ready Projects Pending Delivery

This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2019 2018
JD D
Lands available for sale * 20,997,779 20,997,779
Apartments and villas available for sale ** 729,617 1,056,449
21,727,396 22,054,228
Less: Provision for impairment of stage three villas (729,616) (729,616)

20,997,780 21,324,612
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The movement on apartments and villas available for sale during the year is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Transfers-net (Note 4)
Additions during the year
Apartments returned from clients
Sold during the year

Balance at the end of the year

2019 2018
1D D
1,056,449 2,094,964
5 139,633
10,782 68,182
410,000 -
(747,614)  (1,246,330)
729,617 1,056,449

This item represents the cost of the developed lands with an area of 2,223 K square
meters (2,223 dunums), and consists of the original land cost plus developing costs.
Moreover, part of the development costs is amortized and transferred to cost of sales
and/or projects costs according to the percentage of sold lands areas and/or areas of
lands used in sold apartments to the total remaining lands areas. Development costs
represent the total direct cost of construction, which consists mainly of contractors' work,
project engineering, and capitalized borrowing costs, as follows:

December 31,

2019 2018
D D
Lands cost 5,718,202 5,718,202
Net capitalized development costs 15,279,577 15,279,577
20,997,779 20,997,779

There is a first-degree real estate mortgage on plots of land No 190, 194 and 192 to the
favor of facilities granted to Amwaj Tala fo Real Estate Investments as of December 31,
2019 and 2018.

This item represents sold apartments which have not yet been transferred to the buyers.
The sale revenue and cost of the sold apartments are recognized when the all revenue
recognition criteria are fulfilled. During the previous years, a provision for the impairment
of Phase 3 Villas of JD 729,616 was taken. In the opinion of management, the net value
of ready projects pending delivery represents the recoverable amount. During the year,
the process of selling a villa and 3 apartments were completed with a value of 1D
945,000 at a cost of JD 747,614 and with a net profit of JD 197,386.

Projects under Construction - Net

This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2019 2018

D D
Golf course 322,581 322,581
Entertainment center 180,786 180,786
Land development 42,460 42,460
Website development 11,075 11,075
556,902 556,902
Less: Provisicn for impairment (500,000) (500,000)
56,902 56,902
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9. Other Debit Balances
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2019 2018
D D

Prepayments-finance lease 800,000 800,000
Prepayments - villas rent 262,990 270,000
Prepayments-apartments (cabanas) rent - 66,200
Prepayments — rents 32,104 107,158
Operators receivable (Oryx) - 209,705
Refundable deposits 188,685 160,123
Income tax deposits 136,115 136,115
Prepaid expenses 108,696 120,455
Employees’ receivable 86,293 85,323
Advances to suppliers 202,043 58,964
Loans expenses - 47,518
Others 8,114 29,992
1,825,040 2,091,553

Provision for expected credit loss - (209,705)
1,825,040 1,881,848

Less: Other debit balances (non-current) (1,062,990) (1,070,000)
Other debit balances (current) 762,050 811,848

Other Debit balances includes the Group's investment in Amwaj Tala for Real Estate
Investments, amounting to 1% of its capital, whose value is recognized in other debit
balances by 1D 1 only as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

10. Inventory
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2019 2018

D D
Construction materials 548,705 481,441
Food and beverage 186,360 168,691
Fuel 43,356 19,238
Consumable goods and others 99,183 146,777

877,604 816,147
Less: Provision for slow-moving items (200,000) (200,000)

677,604 616,147

11. Accounts Receivable - Net
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2019 2018
D D
Customers trade receivables 2,346,667 2,911,243
Checks under collection * 56,748 294,817
Others 170,483 136,635
2,573,898 3,342,695
Less: Expected credit loss , (1,271,359) (1,389,597)
1,302,539 1,953,098

*  The maturity date of checks under collection balances at December 31, 2019 extends
up to December 15, 2020 (until August 10, 2019 for the balance as of December 31,
2018).
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The movement on the account of the expected credit loss provision is as follows:

2019 2018
D D
Balance - beginning of the year 1,389,597 562,229
Effect of adopting IFRS (9) = 849,046
Adjusted Beginning Balance 1,389,597 1,411,275
(Release of) expected credit loss during the year (118,238) (21,678)
Balance - Ending of the Year 1,271,359 1,389,597

The aging of trade receivables is as follows:

December 31,

2019 2018
D D
Less than 30 days 198,279 581,624
31 days - 60 days 343,695 298,788
61 days — 90 days 201,779 203,865
91 days — 120 days 167,454 118,818
More than 120 days 1,435,460 1,708,148
2,346,667 2,911,243

12. Cash on Hand and at Banks
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2019 2018
D 1D
Cash on hand 47,736 54,426
Cash at banks 408,128 572,675
455,864 627,101

Cash at banks includes a restricted amount of JD 125,862 as of December 31, 2019 (ID
103,458 as of Dec 31, 2018), Because there is a seizure by the Income and Sales Tax
Department - Agaba Economic Development Zone Authority as stated in Note (20/d).

13. Capital and Reserves
a. Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
The Group's capital is JD 30.5 million divided into 30.5 million shares at a par value of IJD
1 per share.

b. Statutory Reserve

This item represents the accumulated amounts transferred from annual profits before tax
at a rate of 10% in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law. This reserve may not
be distributed to shareholders. Moreover, the transfer of such amounts may not stop
before the sum of the amounts accumulated in this account becomes equal to one
quarter of the authorized capital. However, based on the General Assembly’s approval,
the deduction may continue until the compulsory reserve becomes equal to the Group's
authorized and paid-up capital. In this regard, the Group shall continue to deduct the
same percentage for each year, provided that the deducted amounts do not exceed paid-
up capital.

c. Voluntary Reserve
The amounts accumulated in this account represent transfers from annual profits before
taxes at a rate not exceeding 20%. This reserve will be used for the purposes approved
by the Board of Directors. Moreover, the General Assembly has the right to distribute the
whole reserve, or part thereof, as dividends to shareholders.

d. Share Premium
This item represents the 2,500,000 premium shares issued as private stock during the
year 2006 at JD 3.5 per share, in addition to JD 21 million, representing 9 million
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premium shares issued during the year of 2015 at a price of JD 3.33 per share after
deducting the expenses related to increasing paid-up capital.

. Loans

&%k
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This item consists of the following:

Short-Term Long-Term
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
D JjD JjD JD

Invest Bank Loan - JD (a)* 2,327,945 1,682,026 9,228,594 9,856,688
Jordan Kuwait Bank Loan -

JD (b)** 986,760 14,486,386 14,617,421 -
Jordan Kuwait Bank - USD

(b)*** 138,060 2,030,107 1,879,836 -
Bank Audi - ID (c)**** 4,377,950 500,304 - 4,039,696
Bank Audi - USD (d)***** 3,829,060 593,406 - 4,032,341

11,659,775 19,292,229 25,825,851 17,928,725

The Group has credit facilities from Invest Bank consisting of a loan drawn from the bank
in the name of Jordan Projects for Tourism and Development Company and Moon Beach
for Tourism Investments for a total amount of JD 12,960,000, The balance of this loan as
of December 31, 2019 amounted 1D 11,556,539, and the loan bears interest at a rate of
9.75%. The loan will be repaid in 27 equal quarterly installments beginning February 28,
2019. The purpose of these loans is to build and develop buildings.

The Group signed a restructuring agreement for the loan from the Invest Bank during the
first quarter of 2019. According to the agreement, the lecan is to be repaid in quarterly
installments after a grace period until November 15, 2019, and the loan bears interest at
an annual rate of 9.75%. The first installment is due on February 15, 2020.

In addition, during the year 2020, the Group restructured the loan from Invest Bank as
stated in Note (35).

The Group has credit facilities from Jordan Kuwait Bank consisting of a lean drawn from
Jordan Kuwait Bank in the name of Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company
and Golden Coast for Tourism Hotels for an amount of JD 13,678,600. Moreover, the
balance of this loan as of December 31, 2019 amounted to JD 15,604,181, the loan
bears interest at an annual rate of 10.5%. The loan is to be repaid in 96 equal monthly
installments, starting from January 31, 2019. The purpose of these loans is to develop
and build 10 villas and operate the hotel.

The Group has credit facilities from Jordan Kuwait Bank consisting of a loan in USD
drawn from Jordan Kuwait Bank in the name of Golden Beach Hotels for USD 3,600,000,
which is equivalent to 1D 2,448,936. The balance of this loan as of December 31, 2019
amounted to USD 2,991,378, which is equivalent to JD 2,117,896. The loan bears
interest at a rate of 6%, and is to be repaid in 96 equal monthly installments, starting
from January 31, 2019. The purpose of these loans is to operate the hotel.

During the first quarter of 2019, the Group signed an agreement to restructure its
outstanding loans with Jordan Kuwait Bank (Jordanian Dinar and US Dollar) to repay the
loan in quarterly installments after a grace period until November 15, 2019. Under this
agreement, the annual interest rate is 11% for Jordan Projects Development Company,
10% on the ID loan for the Golden Beach Hotel Company, and 6% on the USD loan for
the Golden Coast Hotels Company. The first installment is due on February 15, 2020.
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In addition, during the year 2020, the Group restructured its loans from the Jordan
Kuwait Bank (in Jordanian Dinar and US Dollar) as stated in Note (35).

The Group has credit facilities from Bank-Audi consisting of a loan of JD 7,500,000 drawn
from Bank-Audi in the name of Moon Beach for Tourism Investment. The balance of this
loan as of December 31, 2019 amounted to ID 4,377,950, and bears interest at a rate of
9%. The loan will be repaid in 15 equal semi-annual installments, starting from
January 31, 2019. The loan was not rescheduled during the year although it was due.
The purpose of these loans is to operate the hotel.

The Group has credit facilities from Bank-Audi consisting of a loan in US dollars of USD
10,600,000, which is equivalent to JD 7,518,000. The balance of this loan as of
December 31, 2019 amounted to USD 5,393,042 which is equivalent to JD 3,829,060,
The loan bears interest at a rate of 5.5%, and is to be repaid in 15 equal semi-annual
installments, starting from January 31, 2019, The loan was not rescheduled during the
year although it was due. The purpose of these loans is to operate the hotel.

The movement on all of the bank facilities for the years 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019 2018
D D
Balance - beginning of the year 37,220,954 35,791,319
Bank loans and bills of acceptance received (interest) 3,399,509 2,715,250
Bank loans and bills of acceptance paid (3,134,837) (1,285,615)
Balance - End of the Year 37,485,626 37,220,954

Guarantees for credit facilities
a. Invest Bank
The Group has provided the following mortgages against the facilities granted by
Invest Bank:
- A first-degree mortgage of IJD 12 million and a second-degree mortgage of
JD 3 million on plot of land No. 210, which was previously No. 140 - Ras
Al-Yemeni Basin No. 2 - the village of the southern coast of the land of Aqgaba,
owned by the Group under Mortgage Bonds Nos. 262/2009 and 240/2010.

- A first-degree mortgage of JD 1,687 K on properties located on plot of land No. 21
- Ras Al-Yemeni Basin No. 2 - the village of the southern coast of the land of
Aqaba, owned by the Group under Mortgage Bonds Nos. 225, 24, 241, 240, 239,
238, 237, 236, 235, 234, 232, 230, 229, 231, 228, 227, 226, 243, 2/2017.

- First-degree mortgage of JD 1,095 K on all the warehouses located on plot of land
No. 11 — Ras Al-Yemeni Basin No. 2 - the village of the southern coast of the land
of Agaba, owned by the Group.

- A first-degree mortgage of JD 144 K on store No. 103 located on plot of land No.
48 - Ras Al-Yemeni Basin No. 2 - the village of the southern coast of the land of
Agaba, owned by the Group.

b. Jordan Kuwait Bank
The Group has provided the following mortgages against the facilities granted by
Jordan Kuwait Bank:

- First-degree mortgages of JD 19,684 K under the debt insurance bonds Nos.108
and 109 of February 15, 2016, and debt security bonds Nos. 625,626,627, and
628 as of December 30, 2013, and bond No. 174 dated April 19, 2012.

c. Bank Audi
The Group has provided the following mortgages against the facilities granted by
Bank Audi:

- Plot of land No. 31 and its construction - Ras Al-Yemeni Basin No. 2 - the village
of the southern coast of the land of Agaba, owned by the Group of IJD 16.5
million, in addition to the personal guarantee of three shareholders. The Group
has also issued a fire insurance policy on the mortgaged property.
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Accounts Pavable

16.

This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2019 2018
D D
Lessors payable * 3,928,802 3,286,740
Agaba Special Economic Zone 3,660,391 1,600,533
Electricity payable 1,250,650 1,497,366
Social security accrued payable 689,666 517,485
Agaba-water payable 84,488 143,403
Notes payable 150,000 150,000
Contractors payable 20,000 105,000
Other payables 4,531,505 2,705,617

14,315,502 10,006,144

Lessors payable represents amounts due from the rental of real estate properties for
leaseback purposes and amounts due from the rental of the Group's staff housing
building.

Post-dated checks have been issued against some of the above payables. The details of
these post-dated checks issued by the Group are as follows:

December 31,

2019 2018
Agaba Special Economic Zone checks 3,265,790 507,666
Social security checks 299,081 418,421
Electricity checks 340,569 784,089
Lessors 457,000 559,000
Deferred contractors checks 20,000 105,000
Agaba-water checks 4,000 143,403
Notes payable 150,000 150,000
Others 613,923 901,114

5,150,363 3,568,693

The maturity date of the outstanding balance as of December 31, 2019 of the post-dated
checks extends until June 25, 2025 (until June 12, 2022 for the balance as of December
31, 2018).

Accounts payable are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as
follows:
December 31,

2019 2018
D D
Accounts payable (current) 11,793,485 9,536,357
Accounts payable (non-current) 2,522,017 469,787

14,315,502 10,006,144

Other Credit Balances

This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2019 2018
D D

Tax deposits 251,091 2,182,103
Management fees 109,482 778,704
Accrued interest 317,686 663,717
Advance payments from customers 862,034 416,782
Employees’ payable 379,368 307,254
Accrued salaries 233,889 264,704
Social security deposits 473,129 120,704
Employees’ tax withholdings 20,460 170,540
Operator fees 357,060 357,060
Other accrued expenses 299,293 401,545

3,303,492 5,663,113
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17. Other Provisions

This item consists of the following:

Oryx provision (Note 31) (a)
Penalty provisions (Note 26) (b)
Lawsuits provision (Note 26) (c)
Vacation provision (d)

a. The movement on Oryx provision is as follows:

Balance - beginning of the year

Provision for the year

Written off

Paid during the period
Balance-End of the Year

b. The movement on the penalty provision is as follows:

Balance — beginning of the year

Provision for the year

Paid during the period
Balance-End of the Year

c. The movement on the lawsuits provision is as follows:

18.

Balance - beginning of the year
Provision for the year
Balance-End of the Year

. The movement on the vacations provision is as follows:

Balance — beginning of the year
Provision for the year
Balance-End of the Year

Deferred Revenues

December 31,

2019 2018
D D
4,268,780 5,101,149
659,837 1,221,827
703,656 659,656
96,383 96,383
5,728,656 7,079,015

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2019 2018
D D
5,101,149 4,901,495
185,000 247,392
(575,874) .
(441,495) (47,738)
4,268,780 5,101,149

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2019 2018
D D
1,221,827 606,929
375,000 614,898
(936,990) -
659,837 1,221,827

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2019 2018
b D
659,656 84,656

44,000 575,000
703,656 659,656

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2019 2018
D D
96,383 -

- 96,383
96,383 96,383

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, deferred revenues represent the amounts received
from customers related to the beach club subscriptions, rent revenue, and selling real-

estate.
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19. Shareholder’s Loan

This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2019 2018
D D
Abu Jaber Brothers 7,578,785 7,216,819
Presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position:
Current liabilities 6,078,785 7,216,819
Non-current liabilities 1,500,000

This amount represents the loan granted by Abu Jaber Brothers Company to one of the
subsidiaries (shareholder and member of the Board of Directors). The purpose of this loan
is to provide the necessary liquidity to finance various investment operations for Moon
Beach for Tourism Investments Company (subsidiary).

The loan annex agreement was signed between the parties on May 6, 2017, which
includes the following:

The interest rate and repayment terms shall be amended regarding the loan balance
as of January 1, 2015 of JD 6,483,968 as agreed by the parties according to the
following terms:

If the debtor / Moon Beach for Tourism Investment and / or any of the other
companies within the group of companies owned and / or controlled by Jordan Project
for Tourism Development Company pays JD 3 million to the creditor / Abu Jaber
Brothers Company in 2017, the creditor agrees to charge interest at a new rate of
5.5% as of January 1, 2018 on the balance of the loan after the payment of JD 3
million.

Moreover, the remaining debt balance shall be paid within two years in four equal
installments, starting from the aforementioned payment date, in addition to the
interest due. Accordingly, the first payment is due on June 1, 2018. The remaining
installments are due after six months from the due date of each installment until the
loan is fully settled.

If the debtor / Moon Beach for Tourism Investments fails to fully pay the
aforementioned amount of 1D 3 million during 2017, the consequences shall be as
follows:

The creditor agrees to a new interest rate of 5.5% as of January 1, 2017 on the loan
balance.

The maturity date of the first installment of the loan principal and any accrued interest
shall be amended, so that the first installment date shall be June 30, 2018, at an
amount of JD 1,500,000 plus accrued interest.

The remaining amounts of JD 1,500,000 plus accrued interest shall be paid every six
months until full settlement.

If the debtor fails to pay any installment on its due date, the remaining installments
and undue amounts, including due interest, shall be deemed due and are to be repaid
immediately.

The contractual interest rate and / or agreed compensation above is annual.

At the end of 2018, the Group signed an agreement with the shareholder to

reschedule the shareholder's loan, so that the first installment is due on August 30,
2020 with to the rest of the terms and conditions referred to above unchanged.
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20. Income Tax

a. Income tax expense
This item consists of the following:
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2019 2018
D JD
Income tax expense for the year 51,319 35,751
Impairmnet of deferred tax assets - 440,099
51,319 475,850
b. Income tax provision
The movement on the income tax provision is as follows:
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2019 2018
D D
Balance - beginning of the year 274,156 238,405
Accrued income tax on the current year’s profit 51,319 35,751
Balance - End of the Year 325,475 274,156
c. Deferred Tax Assets

The movement on deferred tax assets is as follows:
For the Year Ended
December 31,

2019 2018
JD D
Balance at the beginning of the year - 440,099
Impairment of deferred tax assets - (440,099)

Balance — End of the Year a -

Tax Position:

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development

In the opinion of the Company's tax advisor, there is no need to calculate an income
tax provision for the period ended December 31, 2019, as the Company incurred
losses. Moreover, the Company settled its taxes up to 2014, by rejecting the decision.
The years from 2006 to 2008 are pending judgment by the Court of Appeal for Income
Tax Cases. The Company also submitted its tax return /declared its income for the
fiscal year 2013, and it has submitted its objection against the decision issued thereon.
The Company has not yet submitted its tax returns for the years 2015, 2016 and 2017
to the Income and Sales Tax Department. The Company has submitted the draft for the
year 2018 and it is still under audit. In this regard, the Company is committed to
submitting its sales tax returns up to date, and there is a declared balance due from
the Company of JD 9,459 that it has not paid yet.

Moon Beach for Tourism Investment

In the opinion of the Company's tax advisor, there is no need to calculate an income
tax provision for the period ended December 31, 2019, as the Company incurred losses
for the period. Moreover, the Company finalized its tax positon up to 2014. In addition,
the Company submitted its tax return for the fiscal year 2013, and has submitted its
objection against the decision issued thereon. Meanwhile, the Company submitted its
tax returns/declared its taxable income for the years 2015, 2016 and 2017. However,
the Income and Sales Tax Department has not yet reviewed the Company’s accounts
nor issued its final decision up to the date of the financial statements. In this regard,
the Company is committed to submitting its sales tax returns up to date, and it owes a
declared tax balance of JD 1,582,705, excluding late payment penalties of 0.004 for
each week of delay.
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The Income and Sales Tax Department - Agaba Economic Development Zone Authority
issued an order for the attachment of the bank accounts of Moon Beach Tourism
Investment Company on October 29, 2017, as the Company did not pay the amount
due to the Income and Sales Tax Department.

Golden Coast for Hotels

In the opinion of the Company's tax advisor, the provision need to be taken for the year
ending December 31, 2019 amounts to JD 33,535. Moreover, the Company finalized its
tax position up to 2014, while the years from 2005 to 2007 are still in the initial
assessment stage. In addition, the Company submitted its tax return for the fiscal year
2013, and submitted its objection against the decision issued thereon. The Company
submitted its tax returns / declared its taxable income for the years 2015, 2016 and
2017. However, the Income and Sales Tax Department has not yet reviewed the
Company's accounts nor has it issued its final decision up to the date of the
consolidated financial statements. The Company has submitted the draft for the year
2018 and it is still under audit. Furthermore, the Company is subject to a mandatory
tax of JD 6,846, including JD 200 as penalty on the late submission of the tax return for
the year 2016. In this regard, the Company is committed to submitting its sales tax
returns up to date, and it owes a declared tax balance of JD 693,190, excluding late
payment penalties of 0.004 for each week of delay. The Company has settled that
balance through post-dated checks.

Agaba Gulf Construction (Under liquidation)

The Company submitted its tax returns for the years from 2005 to 2010, and the
Company owes tax amounts of JD 316,032, excluding penalties, not paid until the date
of the consolidated financial statements.

Sama Al Agaba Company

In the opinion of the Company's tax advisor, there is no need to calculate an income
tax provision for the period ended December 31, 2019, as the Company is not
operating. The Company submitted its objection against the decision issued for the
years 2010 to 2014. The Company has submitted its tax return for the year 2017 and it
is still under audit process. The Company is not committed to submitting its tax returns
for the years 2015 and 2016.

Tala Beach for Maintenance and Services

In the opinion of the Company's tax advisor, there is no need to calculate an income
tax provision for the period ended December 31, 2019 as the Company incurred losses
for the period. The Company finalized its tax position up to 2014 and is subject to a
mandatory tax of JD 15,109 excluding other penalties. The Company submitted its tax
returns the years 2015, 2016 and 2017, however, the Income and Sales Tax
Department has not yet reviewed the Company’s accounts nor has it issued its final
decision up to the date of the consoclidated financial statements.

Amwaj Al Agaba for Managing Projects and Services

In the opinion of the Company's tax advisor, the income tax provision to be recorded
for the period ended December 31 2019 is JD 17,785. Moreover, the Company finalized
its tax positions up to 2015, and submitted its tax return for the fiscal year 2017 and
was accepted within the unaudited sample. In the meantime, the Company is not
committed to submitting its financial statements and tax return for the fiscal year 2016.
The Company submitted the draft for the year 2018 and is waiting for the final financial
statements.

Jordan Hotels Holding AG

The tax returns submitted to the tax authority in Switzerland have been accepted for
the years 2017 and 2018, there are no tax obligations on the Company for the years
mentioned above since the Company paid full taxes for the years 2017 and 2018, and
in the opinion of management there is no need to take any tax provision.

In the opinion of management and tax advisor of the Group, the tax provisions taken as
of December 31, 2019 are sufficient to meet any future tax obligations.
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21.

Revenue

22.

This item consists of the following:

Hotels revenue

Services revenue

Sales of properties

Revenue from assets and property (Renting)

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2019 2018
JD JD
10,804,151 10,643,880
3,849,253 3,744,510
945,000 1,775,000
1,536,594 1,878,982
17,134,998 18,042,372

The details of revenue, according to segmental and geographical distribution, are

mentioned in Note (34)

Cost of Revenue

This item consists of the following:

Hotels cost of revenue

Services cost of revenue

Cost of real estate sales

Cost of assets and property rental

The details of the above costs are as follows:

Cost of sold apartments plus sales commissions
Cost of food and beverage sold

Cost of consumed and distributed electricity
Rental of villas, apartments, and cabanas
Maintenance

Cost of distributed water

Cost of fuel sold

Direct costs of rooms

Rent

Constructors fees

Insurance

Communications

Hotels Management cost

Commissions

Transportation

Governmental fees

Professional fees

Others
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For the Year Ended
December 31,

2019 2018
1D D
3,149,184 4,349,331
1,604,978 2,746,233
807,021 1,281,333
1,615,423 1,609,537
7,176,606 9,986,434

For the Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
1D 1D

807,021 1,281,333
1,350,388 1,623,645
1,128,462 1,496,065
207,986 1,609,537
966,181 1,106,781
684,507 878,655
525,988 424,019
183,839 230,727
85,044 303,587
172,035 159,797
50,827 57,516
38,454 57,388
- 54,676
81,265 48,932
116,911 20,370
118,376 7,341
39,538 2,259
619,784 623,806
7,176,606 9,986,434




23. Personnel Costs

24.

This item consists of the following:

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Accommodation and transportation allowances

and other benefits
Social security contribution
Transportation and lunch
Medical insurance expense
Others

General and Administrative Expenses

25.

This item consists of the following:

Professional fees

Rent

Transportation and accommodation
Advertising

Stationery and printings

Water, electricity and fuel

Legal expenses

Maintenance

Insurance

Others

Borrowing Costs

26.

This item consists of the following:

Interest on banks loans
Interest on shareholder’s loan
Interest on lease liability
Interest on leases

Other Provision Expenses

27.

This item consists of the following:

Lawsuits provision
Penalties provision
Other expenses

Other Revenue

This item consists of the following:

Shared services revenue

Water and electricity service revenue
Beach Club service revenue

Revenues from car selling and services
Revenue from telecom towers rental
Other revenues

T 1

For the Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
D D

3,894,410 3,479,807
348,386 942,604
493,980 483,965
308,980 211,150
162,800 134,078
176,054 “

5,384,610 5,251,604

For the Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018

D D
185,513 232,878
135,770 107,855
76,806 105,323
58,554 75,103
1,366 63,235
33,048 61,140
4,998 3,924
2,690 2,324
5,381 1,047
394,598 310,190
898,724 963,019

For the Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
1D D
3,717,195 3,378,967
396,925 376,232
252,667 421,857
215,806 <
4,582,593 4,117,056

For the Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
1D JD
44,000 575,000
375,000 614,898
- 665,463
419,000 1,855,361

For the Year Ended Decemnber 31,

2019 2018

D JD
107,959 105,710
35,555 55,951
. 30,616
- 33,869
25,000 =
4,336 5
172,850 226,146




Related Party Transactions and Balances

The details of balances with related parties are as follows:

? Balances
Due from Related Parties Due to Related Parties
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
D D D D

United Insurance - 6,813 13,396 136,319
Major shareholders receivable 172,407 495,700 417,877 409,287
172,407 502,513 431,273 545,606
Shareholder's loan - - 7,578,785 7,216,819
Oryx Company ** - - 4,268,870 5,101,149

& - 11,847,565 12,317,968

No guarantees on these balances have been submitted or received. In addition, no impairment
expense were booked during the year in relation to the balances due from related parties.

Transactions

Revenues Interests
2019 2018 2019 2018
D D
Shareholder’s loan . - 386,925 376,232
Zara South Coast Development ** 464,789 569,398 - -
Oryx Company ** = = 185,000 247,392
464,789 569,398 581,925 623,624

A Company partially owned by a board member.

Transactions with related parties are priced within the normal commercial terms of the other
customers.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The salaries and benefits of executive management amounted to JD 227,731 for the year
2019 (JD 330,600 for the year 2018).

During 2015, the Group acquired the companies that operated Radisson Blu Hotel and Marina
Plaza Hotel in Tala Bay, which were previously owned by Abu Jaber Brothers Company (a
shareholder) and Orascom Company (a shareholder). The land on which the building of the
hotels is built was previously owned by Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company.
Moreover, this land was sold on the condition that it be developed for an amount of JD 35 per
meter before constructing the hotels thereon. Meanwhile, the Company repurchased it for an
average amount of JD 176, while the revaluation average is JD 502, based on market data
and estimates conducted by three real estate valuation experts in 2015. In the opinion of the
Company’s management, the change in price is related to the development project and the
new infrastructure for the area, which was ungualified yet.

(Accumulated Losses) Management's Future Plan

The Group incurred losses of approximately JD 3.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2019. As of December 31, 2019, the accumulated losses amounted to approximately 1D 23.4
million, which exceeded 75% of the Company’s paid-up capital. The Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately JD 11.9 million. The Group also has a deficit in
liquidity for it to meet its short-term liabilities, as well as loans and interest due to creditors. In
addition, the accumulated losses for some of its subsidiaries exceeded their paid-up capital.
These events or conditions raise a material uncertainty about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The following are the details of the Group's future plan, and therefore, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis:

1.Increasing the Group’s paid-up capital as soon as possible by a sufficient amount to ensure

the continuity of the Group, which is currently under discussion with the major shareholders
of the Group.
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2. Trying to reschedule the Group’s due payments for the Income and Sales Tax Department
and any other due payments.

3. Trying to increase the effectiveness of collecting receivables.

4. Focusing during the current period on increasing rental revenues and benefiting from
government support provided for domestic tourism.

5. Trying to renegotiate with the lessors in order to enter into lease agreements on new terms
and to attract new lessors.

6. Working to generate new revenues from unused stores and warehouses, and focusing on
increasing restaurants sales.

7. Continue to work on reducing operating costs and employee expenses.

. Leases

The movement on the right-of-use assets during the year is as follows:

Right-of-use assets

Balance - beginning of the year (adjusted)
Add: Additions during the year

Less: Depreciation for the year

Balance - End of the Year

For the year ended
December 31, 2019

D
4,440,876

(858,996)

3,581,880

Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income:

Depreciation for the year
Interest during the year

Lease liabilities

Balance - beginning of the year (adjusted)
Add: Interest during the year

Less: Payments during the year

Balance — End of the Year

Maturity of lease liabilities analysis:

Less than 1 year
From 1 to 5 years
More than 5 years

Maturity of undiscounted lease obligations analysis:

Less than 1 year
From 1 to 5 years
More than 5 years

-4 -

For the year ended
December 31, 2019

D
858,996
215,806

1,074,802

For the year ended
December 31, 2019

D
4,292,523
215,806

4,508,329

December 31, 2019

1D
795,457
1,381,873
2,330,999

4,508,329

December 31, 2019

D
826,976
1,553,953
2,735,106

5,116,035




31. Contingent Liabilities and Financial Commitments

a. Lawsuits Raised against the Group

There are several lawsuits raised against the Group regarding labor claims and other
financial claims of JD 1,549,294 as of December 31, 2019 (JD 1,414,288 as of
December 31, 2018). According to the Group’s management and its legal consultant,
there is no need to book any additional provisions for these lawsuits.

b. Off-Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Items
As of the date of the consolidated financial statements, the Group had contingent
liabilities as follows:

December 31,

2019 2018
D D
Bank guarantees 72,565 72,565
72,565 72,565

¢. Land Purchase Agreement with Agaba Special Economic Zone

On June 18, 2000, the Group signed an agreement with Agaba Special Economic Zone
authority to purchase a plot of land located on the southern beach of Agaba to be used
for the construction, operation, and management of a comprehensive touristic village
comprising hotels, apartments, residential villas, and other related facilities.

Under this agreement, the Group has the following commitments:

n i

Payment of 1% (every two months) of the gross revenue generated from
operating hotels, restaurants, and recreation centers; commercial, cultural, and
entertainment centers; as well as the Marina.

Payment of JD 2.15 for each square meter of the land sold to third parties for the
construction of residential apartments and villas for sale.

Restrictions on the use of all the Group’s plots of land under the agreement. Such
restriction will be lifted on any plot of land, or part thereof, once the value of the
land has been settled, and the project’'s construction phases of Tala Bay project
have been completed according to the drawings approved by Agaba Special
Economic Zone Authority, provided that these plots of land are sold to other
parties for the purpose of building hotels or other touristic or service projects.

The agreement signed with Agaba Special Economic Zone Authority (ASEZA) states
that the hotels owned by the Group or any entity that purchases, invests or manages
the hotel project shall pay (1)% of the total revenues from operating the project
facilities (hotels, restaurants, recreational facilities and commercial centers as
specified in the Agreement (Q9/99)), before the deduction of any expenses or costs.
Moreover, this amount shall be calculated and remitted to the Aqaba Special Economic
Zone Authority every (60) days. If the Group defaults on the payment, interest shall
be charged on the defaulted payment at a rate of (9%), and shall be paid to Agaba
Special Economic Zone Authority.

d. Roval Diving Club Security Agreement with_Agaba Special Economic Zone Authority

On July 5, 2001, the Group signed an agreement with Agaba Special Economic Zone
Authority to operate the Royal Diving Club for the purpose of constructing an
integrated diving village. According to this agreement, the Group will construct and
operate a touristic project consisting of an integrated diving center. This includes the
construction of and/or the operation of and/or the management of a new diving
center, hotel, restaurant, cafeteria, and commercial units.
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The term of the agreement is 49 years starting from the agreement’s date, renewable
upon the mutual consent of both parties. Under the agreement, the Group is subject to the
following obligations:

1.

An annual fee of 1D 50,000 shall be paid at the beginning of each year (since the
inception of this agreement), and as of the beginning of the second year (after the
inception of the agreement). Moreover, the Company shall be exempt from the
payment of guarantee fees during the first year of this agreement. Starting from the
end of the fourth year of the agreement, the annual allowance shall be increased by
2.5% annually.

10% of the total revenues generated from operating the restaurant and cafeteria, as
well as 5% of the total revenues generated from operating the hotel and its facilities,
shall be paid effective from the start of operating any one of them. The guarantor
company shall bear all of these expenses.

Aqaba Special Economic authority shall not bear any losses or risks if the project fails
to operate.

The guarantor company shall dedicate at least 4% of the project revenues for
marketing and promotion purposes.

In the event the Company is late in the payment of any outstanding payments,
interest shall be charged at a rate of 9% per year of the payment amount starting
from the due of this payment.

During 2015, the Company signed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the
guarantor company for the treatment of all pending financial issues. In this respect, an
initial agreement was reached to establish a new joint company to manage the Royal
Diving Club under the control of Jordan Tourism Development Company.

Jordan Union for Tourism Projects was established in 2015, and 60% of it is owned by
the Company.

Termination of the Oryx Hotel Management Agreement with the Internaticnal

Cooperation Company for Investment

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company and Jordan Holding AG (Subsidiary
Company) have terminated the Management Services Agreement with Oryx Hotel (The
Hotel) owned by the International Cooperation for Investment and Tourism.

It was agreed that Jordan Projects for Tourism and Development Company shall pay
JD 4,315,176, as penalties including the payment of the liability of the International
Cooperation Company for Investment and Tourism to the banks in compensation for
the hotel’'s operating losses, in addition to the expenses of renovating the hotel and
settlement of the debts owed to the hotel suppliers and providers for the term of the
original agreement.

In addition to the above amount, the two parties agreed that Jordan Projects for
Tourism Development Company may not claim any amounts due from the hotel to the
Group of 1D 778,428, in exchange of the termination of the hotel management
agreement. Accordingly, the total liabilities of Jordan Projects for Tourism
Development Company became JD 5,093,604, including JD 209,705 as a provision for
expected credit losses. During 2018, a provision was taken against these liabilities,
and during 2019, the amount of JD 778,428 were written off including provision for
expected credit loss of JD 209,705.
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The two parties also agreed to the followings:

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company shall sign the agreement for using
the beach of Jordan Projects for Tourism Development and / or its subsidiaries for the
benefit of the hotel for one complete year, in addition to transporting guests free of
charge.

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company shall pay any outstanding
liabilities that may appear later but were due from Oryx Hotel. As the agreement is
based on the hotel’s trial balance as of May 1, 2016, any differences and increases
related to the debts owed to the suppliers and service providers as of May 1, 2016
shall be considered the responsibility of Jordan Projects for Tourism Development,
provided that such liabilities do not exceed 1D 100,000 at maximum.

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development shall provide the hotel with copies of all the
contracts previously signed with travel and tourism companies and / or any other
companies, and / or contracts that constitute commitments to others in the future.

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company undertakes not to receive any
amounts and / or checks and / or payments from any third party from the date of
signing the agreement and also undertakes to deliver any payments received during
March to Oryx Hotel directly.

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company shall collect any amounts the hotel
cannot collect from others. In the event that it is unable to collect them, Jordan
Projects for Tourism Development shall pay those amounts to the hotel.

The hotel undertakes to raise its capital to JD 16,333,320, and to register one million
shares of the shares of the International Cooperation Company for Investment and
Tourism in the name of the second party (Jordan Projects for Tourism Development)
after fulfilling all the terms of the management service termination agreement of Oryx
Hotel entered into and agreed upon by both parties.

32. (Loss) per Share-Basic and Diluted
loss per share has been calculated by dividing the loss for the year by the weighted
average number of shares as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
D JD
(Loss) for the year (3,774,203) (6,267,009)
Shares Shares
Weighted average number of shares 30,500,000 30,500,000
JD / Share JD / Share
(Loss) per Share — Basic and diluted (0.124) (0.21)
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Financial Instruments

a.  Capital Risk Management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going
concern and maximize the return to stakeholders through achieving the optimal
balance between shareholders’ rights and debts.
b.  Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk, also referred to as funding risk, is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its obligations. The Group manages
liquidity risk, primarily through continuous monitoring of forecast and actual cash
flows and matching cash collections from operations and sold apartments and
residential units, to provide the necessary liquidity to fund working capital and
operational activities.
The Company’s quick liquidity ratio - through comparing cash on hand and at banks,
accounts receivable, and other debit balances, excluding deferred revenues, as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 - was as follows:
December 31,
2019 2018
D JD
Cash on hand and at banks 455,864 627,101
Accounts receivable - net 1,302,539 1,953,098
Other debit balances 762,050 811,848
Total 2,520,453 3,392,047
Current liabilities, excluding deferred
revenues 36,213,866 43,021,285
Percentage % (quick liquidity ratio) 7% 8%
The Company's liquidity position as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements is as follows:
December 31,
2019 2018
JD JD
Current assets 24,368,244 25,835,319
Less: Current liabilities (36,285,587) (43,306,285)
(Deficit) in working capital (11,917,343) (17,470,966)
Management’s future plan to address the deficit in liquidity and working capital is
disclosed in note (29).
C. Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Group has adopted a
policy of dealing with only creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group does not apply the procedure of
obtaining sufficient collaterals against account receivables, therefore the accounts
receivable are not guaranteed as of the consolidated financial statements date.
d. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in market interest rates.
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The Group manages its interest rate exposure on an ongoing basis, and various
scenarios are assessed such as financing, renewal of existing positions, and
alternative financing.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates related to loans as of the consolidated statement of financial position
date. The analysis is prepared assuming that the loans balances outstanding at the
consolidated statement of financial position date have been outstanding for the
whole year. A 1% increase or decrease is used, representing management's
assessments of probable and acceptable changes in interest rates.

The effect of an (increase) decrease in interest rates by 1%, assuming all other
variables are held constant, is as follows:

+ 1% -1%
2019 2018 2019 2018
D D 1D D
Loss/shareholders’ equity (374,856) (372,210) 374,856 372,210

e. _ Foreign Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group’s major foreign currency transactions are mainly dominated in US Dollar.
Management believes that the impact of foreign currency risk on the consolidated
financial statements is immaterial as the Jordanian Dinar (functional currency of the
Company) is pegged to the US Dollar.

34. Geographical and Segmental Distribution
The Company’s activities are categorized into four sections: Lands and apartments
sales; services; leasing; and hotels. These sections represent the core of segmental
information. The main products and services are divided as follows:

a. Sales

1. Apartments: Selling residential apartments and villas in Tala Bay Tourism resort.

2. Lands: Selling developed lands for the purpose of constructing touristic hotels.

b.  Services
General services: Providing several services to the residents and guests of Tala Bay
Tourism resort, staff housing, and Royal Diving Club and hotel.

c, Leasing
Leasing the staff housing building and commercial shops in Tala Bay resort, and
selling and releasing scme apartments.

d. Hotels

Hotel services: Providing various services to the hotel guests.
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35.

Events after the reporting period

The existence of Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed in January 2020 and
has subsequently spread to many other countries around the world. This event was
declared by the World Health Organization as a global pandemic. This pandemic is
expected to have several economic effects during the year 2020 on all economic
sectors. Management considers this event to be a non-adjusting event after the
reporting period and therefore has not made any adjustments to the consolidated
financial statements as a result of this matter.

Management has taken these unique circumstances and the exposure of the
Company to risk into consideration, and has evaluated the resulting effects on the
Group to review and evaluate the expected risks resulting from this event, as it has
restructured some loans until the beginning of the year 2021. Management expects
persistence of the material uncertainty about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in the future according to the going concern basis.
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